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N. B. S. M. & Associates T +977.1.4533069
Chartered Accountants T +977.1.4515242
6" Floor, Block C & D, Four Square Complex info@nbsm.com.np
Narayan Chaur, Naxal, Kathmandu, Nepal www.nbsm.com.np

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Shareholders of Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the company), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at Ashad 32, 2082 [July
16, 2025], Profit or Loss Account, Cash Flow Statement & Statement of Change in Equity for the year then
ended and notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of
the financial position of the company as at Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025) and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended on that date in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS).

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSA's). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the Institute of Chartered
Accountant of Nepal's code for professional accountants (ICAN Code) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

We have not observed any key audit matters during the course of audit that needs to be reported in this
section.

In association with

I MOORE
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our oblectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with NSA's will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSA's, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compiled with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
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matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the company In so for as it appears from our examination of those books of account of
the company. In our opinion the balance sheet, profit or loss account, cash flow statement and statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2063 and
are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the company.

For N.B.S.M. & Associates

CA. Durga
Partner
Date: 2082-05-23

Place: Kathmandu

rasad*Gnawali, FCA
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Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Amounl in NPR

Particulars Note As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Assets
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 4.11 13,638,446.57 8,211,329.47
Capital work in progress - 1,146,221.48
Intangible Assets 4.12 2,770,673,085.72 2,852,923,571.05
Intangible Asscts under development 4.12 103,119,198.36 101,951,358.36
Right of use Assets 4.29 8,727,485.28 -
Financial Assets 4.13 300,000.00 300,000.00
Total Non Current Assels 2,896,458,215.93 2,964,532,480.37
Current Assets
Current Financial Assets
Sundry Debtor and Receivables 4.14 46,980,121.30 68,409,653.03
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.15 172,837,084.73 86,410,065.67
Other Financial Assets 4.16 3,377,000.00 5,312,000.00
Non- Financial Current Assets
Other Current Assets 4.17 15,430,365.53 11,633,914.77
Current Tax Assets 4.21 2,914,74891 2,585942.18
Total Current Assets 241,539,320.47 174,351,575.65
Total Assets 3,137,997,536.40 3,138,884,056.01
Lquity and Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 4.18 1,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
Other Equity
Retained Eamnings 4.19 (106,788,129.57) (99,951,021.68)
Other Reserves 4.20 1,556,310.25 1,186,554.25
Total Equity 894,768,180.68 901,235,532.57
Liubilities
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Non current Borrowings 423 2,028,623,145.09 2,003,706,025.09
Provisions 4.24 525,082.00 497,121.00
Lease Liabilities 425 8,885,646.64 -
Total Non- Current Liabilities 2,038,033.873.73 2,004,203,146.09
Current Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilitics
Current Borrowings 4.26 126,002,000.00 61,000,000.00
Lease Liabilities 425 454,640.20
Other Financial Liabilities 4.27 77,603,524.98 170,292,018.21
Other Current Liabilities 4.28 1,135,316.81 2,153,359.13
Total Current Liabilities 205,195,482.00 233,445,377.34
Total Liabilities 2,243,229,355.72 2,237,648,523.43
Total Liabilities and Equity 3,137,997,536.40 3,138,884,056.01

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

Sudhir Giri
General Manager

Ghanashyam Thapa
Director

Ramesh Kumar Maskey,
Director

Raneshwar Rijal
Chairperson

Bishal Bhattarai
Director

Date: 2082-05-23
Place: Kathmandn

Saroja Poudyal Regmi
Director

r
Rameshwar Lamichhane

Director

As per our report of ¢

CA Durga Prasad Ghwali. "\

NBSM & Associates,
Chattered Accountant
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Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Mathillo Mailun Khola
Jalvidhyut Limited

Amount in NPR
Particulars Note As at 2082.03.32 As a1 2081.03.31

Assets

Non Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment 4.11 13,638,446.57 8,211,329.47
- |Capital work in progress - 1,146,221.48

Intangible Assets 4,12 2,770,673,085.72 2,852,923,571.05

Intangible Assets under development 4.12 103,119,198.36 101,951,358.36

Right of use Assets 429 8,727,485.28 -

Financial Assels 4.13 300,000.00 300,000.00

Total Non Current Assets 2,896,458,215.93 2,964,532,480.37

Current Assets

Current Financial Assets

Sundry Debtor and Reccivables 4.14 46,980,121.30 68,409,653.03

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.15 172,837,084.73 86,410,065.67

Other Financial Asscts 4.16 3,377,000.00 5,312,000.00

Non- Current Financial Assets

Other Current Assets 4.17 15,430,365.53 11,633,914.77

Current Tax Assets 421 2,914,748 91 2,585942.18

Total Current Assets 241,539,320.47 174,351,575.65

Total Assets 3,137,997,536.40 3,138,884,056.01

Lquity and Liabilities

Equity

Share Capital 4.18 1,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00

Other Equity

Retained Earnings 4.19 (106,788,129.57) (99,951,021.68)

Other Reserves 4.20 1,556,310.25 1,186,554.25

Total Equity 894,768,180.68 901,235,532.57

Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Non eurrent Borrowings 4.23 2,028,623,145.09 2,003,706,025.09

Provisions 4.24 525,082.00 497,121.00

Lease Liabilities 4.25 8,885,646.64 -

Total Non- Current Liabilities 2,038,033,873.73 2,004,203,146.09

Current Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilitics

Current Borrowings 4.26 126,002,000.00 61,000,000.00

Lease Liabilities 4.25 454,640.20

Other Financial Liabilities 427 77,603,524.98 170,292,018.21

Other Current Liabilities 4.28 1,135316.81 2,153,359.13

Total Current Liabilities 205,195,482.00 233,445,377.34

Total Liabilities 2,243,229,355.72 2,237,648,523.43

Total Liabilities and Equity 3,137,997,536.40 3,138,884,056.01

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statcments.

Sudhir Giri
General Manager

Ghanashyam Thapa
Director

Rameslt Kumar Maskey
Director

—
= - Raineshwar Rijal
Bishal Bhattarai Chairperson

Director

Date: 2082-05-23
Place: Kathmandu

Saroja Poudyal Regmi
Director

U
Rameshwar Lamichhane
Director

As per our report of ey&n date -

CA Durga Prasad GNywali "\
NBSM & Associalces,
Chartered Accountant
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Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the Period ended Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Revenue (Construction) o T s T 26,598,153.76 T427,728,799.95 |

Cost of Sales (Construction) . (26,598,153.76) (427,728,799.95)
Revenue from Sales of Electricity . 349,560,886.18 120,822,098.42

Power Plant Operation Expenses _ _ 58,008,259.07

- R L B T A
Other Income . 357,750.00 2,356,600.00
Administrative and Other Operating Expenses 46 (17,925,507.16) (17,285,665.49)
Depreciation 47 (3,039,350.75) (2,135,364.70)

Amortization _ _ . 107,680,799.25

573,655.52 |

Fmancnal Income . . . —— 2,22,633.98
Financial Costs

Income Tax Expenses .
Current Tax 4.10 (4,888.36) -
Deferred Tax Income/(Expense

Earnings per Equity share of Rs.100 each :
Basic EPS (0.68) _ (5.55)

Diluted EPS (0.68) (5.55)
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

LY -
A '~ '
~ - .
Rishi RazGautam Sudbhir Giri Saroja Poudyal Regmi
Head - Finance General Manager Director
Ghapashyam Thapa Ramesh Kumar Mas Rameshwar Lamichhane
Director Directo - Director

e N

Bishal Bhattarai Rameshwar Rijal CA D"’g;:r}t%ad G"a\a“
' Chairperson ner
Director alrp NBSM & Associates,
Chartered Accountant

Date: 2082-05-23
Place: Kathmandu

&% SIET Iy AT Jal (3M.d. 0T/0TR) \ www.sanimamailung.com




/" \ Mathillo Mailun Khola

Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Period ended Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)
Amount in NPR

Profit for the year T (52,015,969.10) (52,015,969.10)
Gain/(loss) on Acarial valuation of defined benefit liabili 369,756.00 757,846.00

Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.
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Rishi Kaj Gautan{ 5 ,104\2 % Sudhir Giri Saroja Poudyal Regmi
Head - Finance & » & General Manager Director
o Y/
\%, O
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[y
o %/ .
t g =
Ghanashyam Thapa Ramesh Kumar ey Rameshwar Lamichhane
Director Direct Director

Bishal Bhattarai Rameshwar Rijal =)
Director Chairperson CA Durga P&ad é‘&i&ah o~
Partner
NBSM & Associates,
Chartered Accountant

Date: 2082-05-23
Place: Kathmandu
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Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal )

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Period ended Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Amount in NPR
| & 1 5 i i % = - = i i - * 'I'..'. ] Al e AMALL LISAY
Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit for the Year

Adjustment for:

(6,837,107.90) (52,015,969.10)
Actuarial gain(OCI) - 757,846.00
Depreciation and Amortaiztion 110,720,150.00 47,951,308.40
Deferred Tax Expenses 2,479,370.26
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets - 15,557.59
Cash Flow from Changes in Working Capital

(Increase)/ Decrease in Current Assets

19,239,274.24
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities

15,196,840.78
28,249,895.34

128,942,880.57
Cash Flow from Investing Activities

(Increase)/Decrease in Intangible Assets

(26,598,153.76) (429,105,478.95)
Capitalisation/Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments (17,193,953.20) (212,252.96)
(Increase)/Decrease in Capital WIP 1,146,221.48
Increase/(Decrease) in Non Current Liabilities

(1,146,221.48)
ale roceeds of Prope;

9,283,363.55 )
Plant and Equipments _ ___ 141,637.87

Cash Flow from Financial Activities
[ncrease/(Decrease) in Borrowings
Share Issue Expenses

|Issuance of Share Capital

24,917,120.00

273,343,126.00
(2,448,625.20)

__ - 250,000,000.00

Tot: ashenerate in the Year : "J .
pening Cash and Bank Balances

"~ 86,427,019.06
86,410,065.67

110,395,807.02

£ -~
2y
\ 1] \‘,
\ﬂ* -
. . . \. mgres . - ——————— \J >
Rishi Kaj Qautam Sudhir Giri Saroja Poudyal Regmi
Head - Finance General Manager Director
@AAWM — % % ~
Y t / "
Ghanashyam Thapa Ramesh KUW Rameshwar Lamichhane
Director Direct Director
W\/ As per oureport
/ —_— '3
- > L

A\
...... . Rameshwar Rijal
Bishal Bhattarai Chairperson CA Durgfll) P
Director artner
NBSM & Associates,
Chartered Accountant
Date: 2082-05-23

Place: Kathmandu
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Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Period ended Ashadh 32,2082 (July 16, 2025)

Amount in NPR
Balance as at Shwaran 01, 2080 750,000,000 (45,486,427 428,708 704,942,281
Net profit for the year - (52,015,969) - (52,015,969)
Issue of new shares 250,000,000 - - 250,000,000
Share Issue Expenses (2,448,625) (2,448,625)
Adjustment for Prior Period [ssue - - -
Other Adjustments -
Adjustments to AFS reserve through OCI . - - - -
Adjustments to Actuarial reserve through OCI - - 757,846 757,846
Balance as at Ashadh end 2081 1,000,000,000.00 ~(99,951,021.68) 1,186,554.25 901,235,532.57
Net profit for the Period - (6,837,107.90) - (6,837,107.90)
Other Adjustments -
Adjustments to AFS reserve through OCI - 369,756.00 369,756.00
Adjustments to Actuarial reserve through OCI - -
QOther Reserves
Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2082 1,000,000,000.00 (106,788,129.57) 1,556,310.25 894,768,180.68

A
T
C W Ny
Yl ‘ e
Rishi RgGautam Y Sudhir Giri Saroja Pgudyal &egmi
Head - Finance General Manager Director
@AAAA&\M“ @‘% &
Ghanashyam T‘hapa ' Ramesh Kumar Maske 7 Rameshwar Lamichhane
Director Director Director

e

o W

. -— )
Bishal Bhattarai

Director Chairperson

Date: 2082-05-23
Place; Kathmandu

Rameshwar Rijal

As per our report of Qyen date-~.
R s AN

CA Durga Pra&&d Gnalusli™
Partner
NBSM & Associates,
Chartered Accountant
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4.1 Revenue (Construction)

Mathillo Mailun Khola

Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amount in NPR

|Particulars

Current Period

Previous Period |

Mathillo Mailung Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana (14.3 MW) 25,430,313.76 427,728,799.95

Madhya Mailung Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana (13MW) 1,161,840.00 -

Mathiilo Mailung "B" Jalvidhyut Aayojana (17MW) 6,000.00 -
Total 26,598,153.76 427,728,799.95

4.2 Cost of Sales (Construction)

Curreat Period

Previous Period

Particulars

Mathillo Maifun Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana (14.3 MW) (25,430,313.76) (427,728,799.95)
Madhya Mailung Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana (13MW) (1,161,840.00) -
Mathiilo Mailung "B" Jalvidbyut Aayojana (17MW) _(6,000.00) -
Total (26,598,153.76) (427,728,799.95)

4.3 Revenue from Sales of Electricity

Current Period

Previous Period

Particulars
Income from Sales of Electricity 349,560,886.18 120,822,098.42
Total 349,560,886.18 120,822,098.42

4.3.1 Revenue from Sales of Electricity

Previous Period

Particulars Current Period

Shrawan 50,100,831.79 -
Bhadra 45,400,464.00 -
Ashwin 46,969,529.81 -
Kartik 35,767,584.00 -
Mangshir 20,709,552.00 -
Poush 25,004,028.00 -
Magh 21,001,932.00 1,306,371.61
Falgun 21,283,757.50 19,096,013.58
Chaitra 23,198,746.98 20,446,148.35
Baisakh 13,137,534.80 14,993,470.94
Jestha 24,183,572.40 20,318,973.94
Ashadh 22,803,352.90 44,661,120.00
Total 349,560,886.18 120,822,098.42

4.4 Power Plant Operation Expenses

*The commercial operation of the plant started from Magh 28, 2080. So, the revenue from sale of electricity in previous period is shown from the same month only.

¢
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Particulars Current Period Previous Period
Communication Expenses 268,987.43 239,539.48
Community Support 1,118,562.77 180,000.49
Compensation 10,000.00 -
Computer Expenses 61,239.50 17,900.02
Consultancy Fees 7,569,634.91 2,785,732.11
Credit Rating Fee 348,718.00 56,500.00
Electricity / Water 50,496.00 22,268.00
Field Consumable Goods 211,153.46 162,745.20
Fule & Lubricants 979,593.42 684,714.72
Govermment Fee 19,676.45 42,304.60
Guest Refreshment Expenses 580,670.30 711,292.51
Health and Safety Expenses- site 9,886.00 14,594.02
House Keeping 74,664.07 29,733.45
Insurance Expenses 6,543,853.87 2,932,229.89
Kitchen Accessories 17,110.00 2,720.00
Laboratory Testing Expenses 31,414.00 4,869.00
LC Commission and Charges 194,435.51 3,622.67
Medicine Expenscs - 18,544.00
Meeting Expenses 18,500.00

Meeting Allowances 69,000.00 108,000.00
Office Rent 61,000.33 37,779.00
Porter and Helper 29,510.00 112,553.00
Personnel Expenses ( See note 4.4.1) 18,730,046.01 9,312,195.11
Printing & Stationery 40,160.73 38,530.50
Repair & Maintenance ( Vehicle) 1,065,765.07 387,821.33 |
Repair & Maintenance - Access Road 3,636,208.18 2,660,949{2@_
Repair & Maintenance - Civil Works 153,900.27 oy
Repair & Maintenance - EM 693,701.17

Repair & Maintenance - HM 187,322.98

Repair & Maintenance - TL / 150,516.10

Repair & Maintenapce Other ' 65,284.00
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Kathmandu, Nepal

Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mathillo Mailun Khola
Jalvidhyut Limited

Amount in NPR

Royalty - Capacity 1,430,000.00 595,833.00
Royalty - Generation 6,991,217.73 2,416,441.97
Security Guard 2,568,128.40 1,033,385.00
Site Office Consumable Goods 206,086.65 254,722.60
Staff Refreshment Expenses 2,370,460.05 1,593,273.69
Training & Seminar - Site - 150,000.00
Transportation Expenses 3,650.00 52,535.00
Travelling Expenses 1,284,035.71 1,050,143.00
Vehicle Renewal & Taxes 163,670.00 101,000.00
Total 58,008,259.07 28,658,239.26
4.4.1 Personnel expenses

Particulars

Salary 6,137,410.00 2,629,843.34
Allowances 9,397,352.47 3,883,703.24
Dashain Allowance 818,026.31 2,246,168.56
Leave Pay Expenses 1,019,247.96 61,671.45
Over Time Allowance 130,525.27 490,808.52
Social Security Fund 1,227,484.00 -
Total 18,730,046.01 9,312,195.11

4.5 Other Income

Previous Period

Particulars Current Period
Other Income 357,750.00 2,356,600.00
Total 357,750.00 2,356,600.00

4.6 Administrative and Other operating expenses

Previous Period

Particulars Current Period

Advertisement 242,865.00 392,457.00
AGM Expenses 676,069.30 670,451.85
Audit Expenses 10,233.00 46,950.00
Audit Fee 226,000.00 113,000.00
Bank commission and Charge 157,008.73 98,201.12
Business Promotion Expenses 631,979.07 1,329,291.83
Communication Allowances 126,000.00 99,000.00
Communication Expenses 109,710.88 83,769.14
Community Support Expenses 60,000.00 150,007.50
Computer & Software Maintenance Expenses 191,886.33 39,432.10
Consultancy Fee 583,298.48 153,688.48
Loss on disposal of Assets - 15,557.60
Electricity/Water/Cleaning 159,663.95 422,009.50
Fuel & Lubricants 122,958.00 320,426.00
Hospitality Expenses 75,685.00 78,840.80
Housekeeping - -
Insurance & Taxes 79,367.65 57,351.47
Leasehold proprerty maintenance 329,271.18 11,042.93
Meeting Expenses 66,480.00 91,190.00
Meeting Allowances 666,000.00 811,000.00
Membership Fees & Renewal - -
Miscellaneous Expenses 13,440.00 4,075.45
Office consumable goods 193,916.85 73,857.00
Office Rent / lease exp's 166,938.48 909,253.00
Personnel Expenses ( See note 4.6.1) 9,522,760.31 8,124,260.43
Porter / Helper 47,980.60 12,122.00
Postage/Air Document 2,995.00 -
Printing & Statonary 123,086.84 224,919.38
Regulation fee & Charges 475,763.00 417,000.00
Repair & maintenance Others 47,537.97 57,339.35
Repair & Maintenance - Vehicle 71,257.02 142,576.98
Parking Expenses 3,220.00 3,255.00
Staff Refreshment/ Picnic/ Sports 502,604.59 471,411.67
Training & Seminar - 34,360.00
Transportation & Fares 10,830.00 6,816.00
Vehicle Renewal and Taxes 40,800.00 12,600.00
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss 2,187,899.93 1,808,151.91

Total A

17,925,507.16

QY
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17,285,665,49---.
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4.6.1 Personnel expenses

\ Mathillo Mailun Khola
Jalvidhyut Limited

Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amount in NPR

Partieulars Current Period Previous Period

Salary 3,579,873.34 2,873,573.33
Allowances 4,153,522.65 3,076,143.55
Social Security Fund 715,976.00 597,214.53
Dashain Allowances 504,500.00 402,497.29
Overtime Allowance - -

Leave Expense Provision 427,615.34 901,172.00
Leave Pay Expenses 141,272.98 273,659.73
Total 9,522,760.31 8,124,260.43

4.8 Financial Income

Particulars Current Period Previous Period
Interest on Bank Deposit 2,224,633.98 573,655.52
Total 2,224,633.98 573,655.52

4.9 Financial Cost

Particulars

Current Period

Previous Pcriod

Interest on Bank Loan (Overdraft) 30,535.04 -
Interest on Bridge Gap loan 68,884.94 6,629,297.75
Interest on Term Loan 171,359,644.79 72,764,441.88
Interest on lease liabilities 862,508.70 --
Total 172,321,573.47 79,393,739.63

4.10 Income tax expenses

Particulars

Current Period

Previous Period

Current Income Tax (4,888.36) S
Deferred Tax Income/(expense) - (2,479,370.26)
Total (4,888.36) (2,479,370.26)
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Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.13 Financial assets
Held till Maturity Financial Assets

The investment that are held with the primary intention to collect contractual cash flows of the financial assets and holding till maturity are
classified under this heading. The fixed deposit with [ife of more than 1 year is classified under this heading.

Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Sidhhartha Bank - Fixed Deposits 300,000.00 300,000.00
Total 300,000.00 300,000.00

4.14 Sundry Debtors and Receivables

Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Receivable from Other - 3,440,467.09
Sundry Debtor- Nepal Elctricity Authority (NEA) 46,980,121.30 64,969,185.94
Total 46,980,121.30 68,409,653.03

4.15 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balance and other short term deposits of financial assets having maturity less than a year.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars . As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31

Prabhu Bank Limited 11,888.64 11,842.45
Sanima Bank - Bidur 102,882.77 174,749.97
Sanima Bank Ltd. : 133,324,724.22 6,686.84
Siddhartha Bank Limited ( 00115272681) 37,879,889.59 86,117,325.68
Siddhartha Bank Limited (55506920808 ) 1,476,891.24 -
Siddhartha Bank Limited ( 55506433348) 1,308.65 -
Nepal SBI Bank Lid 39,499.62 99,460.73
Total 172,837,084.73 86,410,065.67

Current other Financial Assets
4.16 Other Financial Assets

Current other Assets
Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Miscellaneous Deposit 200,000.00 200,000.00
LC Deposit (Margin) 3,177,000.00 5,112,000.00
Total 3,377,000.00 5,312,000.00
4.17 Other Current Assets
Current other Assets
Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Prepaid Insurance 3,582,832.72 3,539,741.13
Prepaid Expenses 1,738,559.27 961,496.89
Inventories - EM 4,935,210.30 -
Inventorics - HM 204,846.40 -
Inventories - Fuel 105,860.50 153,652.50
Advance to Contractors (See 4.17.1) 3,138,408.98 4,558,120.63
Advance for Land Purchase 1,552,500.00 2,032,968.00
Advance to Others - 210,000.00
Business Advance to Staff 172,147.36 177,935.62
Total 15,430,365.53 11,633,914.77
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Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.17.1 Advance to Contractors

Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Bavari Construction Pvt, Ltd - 1,419,711.65
Structo Nepal Pvt. Ltd. 1,969,957.48 1,969,957.48
Ekikrit Byapar Company Pvt. Ltd. 1,168,451.50 1,168,451.50
Total 3,138,408.98 4,558,120.63
4.18 Share Capital
Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Paid up Capital 1,000,000,000.00 750,000,000.00
Add: New issue - :250,000,000.00
Total 1,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
4.19 Retained Earnings
Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Opening Retained earnings (99,951,022) (45,486,427)
Adjustment )
Restated Opening Retained Earnings (99,951,022) (45,486,427)
Less: Share Issuance Expense - (2,448,625)
Add: Profit for the year (6,837,107.90) (52,015,969)
Closing Retained earnings (106,788,129.57) (99,951,022)
4.20 Other Reserves :
Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Actuarial reserve 1,556,310.25 1,186,554.25
Total # 1,556,310.25 1,186,554.25
4.21 Current Tax Assets / Liablitics
Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Income Tax Liabilities - -
Advance Tax 2,914,748.91 2,585,942.18
Net Tax Liability 2,914,748.91 2,585,942.18
4.22 Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities
4,22.1 Deferred Tax Liabilities
Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Deferred Tax Liabilties - -
Total R -
4.22.2 Deferred Tax Assets
Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Deferred Tax Assets - (2,479,370.26)
Total - (2,479,370.26)
4.23 Non current Borrowings
Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Long Term Loan 2,154,625,145.09 2,049,706,025.09
Less : Transfer to Shorterm Liability (126,002,000.00) (46,000,000.00)
Total ;  2,028,623,145.09 2,003,706,025.09

3% IR affes JENROT ST (3M.F. 20T9/0TR)
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Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.23.1 Non current Borrowings

Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Siddhartha Bank Ltd 1134921687.69 1086713420.69
Nepal SBI Bank Ltd 1019703457.40 962992604.40
Total 2,154,625,145.09 2,049,706,025.09
4.24 Provisions
Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Provision For Leave 525,082.00 497,121.00
Total 525,082.00 497,121.00
4.25 Lease Liabilitites :
Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Lease Liabilities - Non Current Portion 8,885,646.64 -
Lease Liabilities - Current Portion 454,640.20 -
Total 9,340,286.84 -
4.26 current Borrowings
Non current Borrowings
Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Bridge Gap Loan - 15,000,000.00
Principal Payable - Term Loan 126,002,000.00 46,000,000.00
Total 126,002,000.00 61,000,000.00
4.27 Other Financial Liabilities
Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Audit Fee Payable 223,000.00 111,500.00
Meeting Allowance Payable 78,200.00 -
Leave Allowance Payable 836,447.33 1,740,365.43
Office Rent Payable 6,700.00 -
Overtime Allowance Payable 3,175.00 9,792.56
Payable to Others 3,315,428.48 7,386,623.15
Payable to Staff 6,000.00 §4,000.00
Retention Money Payable 73,134,574.17 104,924,868.43
Payable to Contractors - 56,034,868.64
Total 77,603,524.98 170,292,018.21
4.28 Other Current Liabilities
Particulars As at 2082.03.32 As at 2081.03.31
Royalty Payable 939,917.78 1,299,828.68
Social security tax payable - 3,155.00
Withholding Tax Payable 85,635.52 716,619.43
Remuneration Tax Payable 109,763.51 133,756.02
Total 1,135,316.81 2,153,359.13
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Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at Ashadh 32, 2082 ( 16 July 2025)
4.30 Employee Benefit ?

Year ‘ 2081-82 2080-81

Particulars Leave Encashment (Non Funded) Leave Encashment (Non Funded)
Expenses Recognized In Income Statement
Interest Cost 46,823.00 70,965.00
Current Service Cost 398,208.00 663,717.00
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss : (369,756.00) (757,846.00)
Past Service Cost
Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss A/e 525,082.00 497,121.00
Change in Present Value Obligations
PV of Obligation at beginning of the year 497,121.00 753,460.00
Interest Cost 46,823.00 70,965.00
Current Service Cost 398,208.00 663,717.00
Benefit paid ' (47,314.00) (233,175.00)
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss (369,756.00) (757,846.00)
Liability at the end of the year ) 525,082.00 497,121.00
Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Asset at Beginning of the Year
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Contribution by Employer
Benefit paid
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Asset at End of the Year
Amount Recognized in Statement of Financial
Position
Present Value of Obligations at Year End 525,082.00 497,121.00
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Year End
Funded Status (525,082.00) (497,121.00)
Unrecognized Actuarial (Gain)/Loss at Year End .
Unrecognized Past Service Cost
Net Asset/(Liability) Recognized in Balance Sheet (525,082.00) (497,121.00)
Actuarial Assumptions
Discount rate 9% 10%
Salary escalation rate 10.00% 10.00%
Retirement age 58 58
Remaining Working Life 792, 70.42
Mortality NALMT 2009 NALMT 2009
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Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

4.12.1 Intangible Assets Amount in NPR
Access Road & Bridge
Access Road 214,580,752.46 - 214,580,752.46
Sub-total 214,580,752.46 - 214,580,752.46
MMKJA (14.3 MW) -Main Civil Works
Civil Work Support 5,566,328.63 - 5,566,328.63
Electricity bill - 11kVA line 25,708,026.58 193,447.24 25,901,473.82
Explosive Arrangement Expenses 72,256,942.63 210,000.00 72,466,942.63
General Item-MCW 443,997,803.63 10,453,121.50 454,450,925.13
Headworks : Approach Canel 3,460,903.74 - 3,460,903.74
Headworks : Intake and Gravel Trap 13,471,839.77 - 13,471,839.77
Headworks : Settling Basin & Conveyance Tank 57,677,559.33 - 57,677,559.33
Headworks : Wear and Undersluice 74,837,934.25 1,130.93 74,839,065.18
Powerhouse and Tailrace 136,907,359.74 - 136,907,359.74
Project Overhead - Civil Work 426,010,920.74 - 426,010,920.74
Underground Works : Audit Portal 3,969,806.39 - 3,969,806.39
Underground Works : Audit Tunnel 7,128,348.92 - 7,128,348.92
Underground Works : Forebay 26,080,361.93 - 26,080,361.93
Underground Works : Headrace Tunnel 137,471,027.78 834,076.50 138,3(_55,104.28
Underground Works : HRT Inlet Portal 1,870,198.42 - 1,870,198.42
Underground Works : Penstock Outlet Portal 867,337.75 - 867,337.75
Underground Works : Penstock Tunnel 46,339,628.89 43,459.16 46,383,088.05
Underground Works : Spillway Outlet Portal 5,938,940.35 - 5,938,940.35
Underground Works : Spillway Tunnel 15,517,667.79 - 15,517,667.79
Underground Works : Vertical Shaft 53,580,840.87 - 53,580,840.87
Sub-total 1,558,659,778.13 11,735,235.33 1,570,395,013.46
MMKJA (14.3MW) - Construction Power Line
11 kVA Power Line 12,064,033.96 - 12,064,033.96
TOD Meter 592,083.59 - 592,083.59
Transformer - 100 kVA 1,240,000.01 - 1,240,000.01
Transformer - 500 kVA 1,407,844.40 - 1,407,844.40
Transformer - 400 kVA 1,040,052.00 - 1,040,052.00
Sub-total 16,344,013.96 - 16,344,013.96
MMKJA (14.3 MW) - Electromechanical Works .
12 kV Switch Gear Equipments 15,386,903.60 - 15,386,903.60
145 KV CT ( Current Transformer) Meter 1,391,631.41 - 1,391,631.41
145 KV CVT ( Capacitive Voltage Transformer) Meter 1,391,631.41 - 1,391,631.41
145 KVA AIS Equipments 13,237,323.00 - 13,237,323.00
145 KV A GIS Equipment 26,450,600.00 - 26,450,600.00
Cable 10,520,125.00 - 10,520,125.00
Conrtrol and Protection Panel 17,043,867.00 - 17,043,867.00
Customs Duty- EM Equipemnt Supply 6,247,648.00 - 6,247,648.00
EM Accessories & Parts ( All Complete) 41,989,257.10 - 41,989,257.10
EM Equipment Support works 24,610,754.58 1,809,309.44 26,420,064.02
Equipments of SCADA and Commuication System 16,587,524.80 2,985,035.53 19,572,560.33
Generator with Auziliary Equipment & Accessories 87,282,170.80 - 87,282,170.80
Main Inlet Valve and Accessories All Complete 11,789,753.80 - 11,789,753.80
Main Transformer with Accessories Complete Set 25,326,449.50 - 25,326,449.50
Overhead Travelliog EOT Cranc Including All Accessorics 9,260,963.10 - 9,260,963.10
Piping of Cooling Water Supply System 2,610,193.30 - 2,610,193.30
Project Overhead - EM Work 168,702,571.28 - 168,702,571.28

Transportation - EM Equipment 226,350.00 - 226,350.00
Turbine with Auxilary Equipments & Accessories 53,574,488.00 | - 53,574,488.00
Sub-total = 533,630,205.68 4,794,344.97 538,424,550.65
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Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

Mathillo Mailun Khola
Jalvidhyut Limited

4.12.1 Intangible Assets

Amount in NPR

MMKJA (14.3 MW) 3 H;dfomeéﬁénical Works

Customs Duty - Steel Plate Supply
Febrication - Instalaltion work (Belimouth, Pressure Shaft, Bends,
Branches,Saddle Plates, HDEP Sheets and Manholes)

Gates With Embedded Parts and Hosting Systems

General ltems - HMW

Hydro-Mechanical Support Work

Miscellaneous Steel Works

Project Overhead - HM Work

Steel Plate - ( Hot Rolled Sheet- E350 Grade)

3,350,500.00

56,294,831.54
16,311,302.71
21,149,306.80
12,886,462.36

2,484,514.08
73,746,463.74
72,633,368.99

3,350,500.00

56,294,831.54
16,311,302.71
21,149,306.80
12,886,462.36

2,484,514.08
73,746,463.74
72,633,368.99

132 kVA TL License Fee

1,000,000.00

Stoplogs With Embedded Parts and Hosting System 9,229,008.54 - 9,229,008.54
Track Racks with Embedded Parts and TRCM 1,293,178.78 - 1,293,178.78
Sub-total 269,378,937.54 - 269,378,937.54
132 kVA Transmission Line

132 kV TL Tower Support 443,036.00 - 443,036.00
132 kVA TL Cable - OPGW 2,658,218.74 - 2,658,218.74
132 kVA TL Conductor 14,842,550.00 - 14,842,550.00

1,000,000.00

132 KVA TL ROW Land Compensation 21,771,461.10 47,531.00 21,818,992.10
132 kVA TL Tower Parts 35,667,136.83 180,800.00 35,847,936.83
132 kVA Transmission Line 73,612,280.30 3,173,042.38 76,785,322.68
Customs Duty - TL Tower Parts Supply 3,476,303.00 - 3,476,303.00
Land - 132 kVA Transmission Line 7,191,864.00 820,688.00 8,012,552.00
Project Overhead - TL Work 61,240,801.58 - 61,240,801.58
Transmission Line Survey 863,375.00 - 863,375.00
Sub-total 222,767,026.55 4,222,061.38 226,989,087.93
Office Building )

Building 39,071,340.14 17,632.00 39,088,972.14
Sub-total 39,071,340.14 17,632.00 39,088,972.14

MMKJA (14.3MW) - Power Evacuation (Substation )
Civil Work - Substation

Customs Duty - Power Evacuation

Energy Meter - Jems Star 0.1 Accuracy

Insulated Underground Cable & Accessories

Power Evacuation Equipment & Accessories

12,350,859.03
110,542.00
1,396,195.46
9,515,925.06
20,933,938.74

4,661,040.08

17,011,899.11
110,542.00
1,396,195.46
9,515,925.06
20,933,938.74

Sub Group Total 44,307,460.29 4,661,040.08 48,968,500.37
Total 2,898,739,514.75 25,430,313.76 2,924,169,828.51
e —
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Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal
12 ible As

L AN i Xe [} "
Madhya Mailung Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana- 13 MW

Consultancy Fee - Cascade 12,456,894.00 1,131,130.00 13,588,024.00
Core Drilling Expenses - Cascade 388,407.00 - 388,407.00
Geophysical Investigation - Cascade 1,132,712.00 - 1,132,712.00
Grid Connection Fee - Cascade 102,000.00 - 102,000.00
Guest Refreshment - Cascade - [5,210.00 15,210.00
Land- Madhya Mailun 14,729,500.00 - 14,729,500.00
License Fees - Cascade 29,500,000.00 - 29,500,000.00
Meeting Allowances - Cascade 70,155.00 6,000.00 76,155.00
Meeting Expenses - Cascade 81,062.00 - 81,062.00
Porter and Helper - Cascade 5,455.00 - 15,455.00
Power Purchases Agreement Fee - Cascade 270,000.00 - 270,000.00
Public Hearing Programme Expenses - Cascade 1,042,993.40 - 1,042,993.40
Travelling Expenses - Cascade - 9,500.00 9,500.00

Total 59,779,178.40 1,161,840.00 60,941,018.40

17 MW

i

e ——

ng B Jalvidhyut Aayojana

cu 5

; E el _ i i
Consultancy Fees- 12,061,337.50 - 12,061,337.50
Contract / Temporary / Daily Wages 84,857.00 - 84,857.00
Fileld Consumable Goods 84,366.00 - 84,366.00
Fuel & Lubricants 16,598.00 - 16,598.00
Geophysical Investigation - Mailung B 1,326,761.25 - 1,326,761.25
Grid Connection Fee- Mailung B 152,000.00 - 152,000.00
Hydrological Station- 15,212.00 - 15,212.00
License Fee 26,500,000.00 - 26,500,000.00
Meeting Allowance - Mailung B 56,031.00 6,000.00 62,031.00
Meeting Expenses- Mailung B 93,245.00 - 93,245.00
Porter & Helper 583,043.00 - 583,043.00
Power Purcashes Agreement Fee- Mailung B 270,000.00 - 270,000.00
Printing & Stationery - Mailung B 6,764.00 - '6,764.00
Public Hearing Programme Expenses- 762,085.21 - 762,085.21
Travelling Expenses 159,880.00 - 159,880.00
Total 42,172,179.96 6,000.00 42,178,179.96
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Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited
Dhumbarahi, Kathmandu Nepal

F/Y : 2081-082

Details of Addition of fixed Assets during the the period of 1st Shrawan 2081 to 32 Ashadh 2082,

Assets Name: Land & Building
Depreciation rate : 5 %

Mathillo Mailun Khola
Jalvidhyut Limited

. . . Absorbed unabsorbed . -
S.N | Purchase date Specification Qty Amount Ratio addition Addition Period Depreciation
1 01/04/2081| Opening Balance (A) -
Sub Total (B) - - -
Total (A+B) - - -
Pool B
Assets Name: Computer and Accessories
Depreciation rate : 25 %
. . . Absorbed unabsorbed . L
S.N | Purchase date Specification Qty Amount Ratio addition Addition Period year Depreciation
1 01/04/2081|Opening Balance (A) 1,846,177.50 - - -
2 08/09/2081  |SSD 1 6,500.00 1.00 6,500.00 - 0.56 917.12
Sub Total (B) 6,500.00 6,500.00 - 0.56 917.12
Total (A+B) 1,852,677.50
Assets Name: Other Office & Electronic Equipment
Depreciation rate : 25 %
. Absorbed unabsorbed . s
N i
S.N | Purchase date Particular Qty Amount Ratio addition Addition Period year Depreciation
1 01/04/2081| Opening Balance (A) 1,684,228.92 -
2 11/07/2081 [Television - 55" 1 80,000.00 1.00 80,000.00 - 0.73 14,520.55
3 26/08/2081 |Wall Heater 1 6,200.00 1.00 6,200.00 - 0.60 930.00
4 03/04/208! | Digital Clamp Meter 1 53,087.40 1.00 53,087.40 - 1.00 13,235.49
Sub Total (B) 139,287.40 139,287.40 - 28,686.04
Total (A+B) 1,823,516.32 139,287.40 -
Assets Name:Photocopy Fax Telephone
Depreciation rate : 25 %
Absorbed unabsorbed Period year Depreciation
S.N |Purchase date |Particular Qty  |Amount Ratio addition Addition ¥ P
1 01/04/2081|Opening 297,000.00 -
Total (A+B) - . B .
Total 297,000.00 - -
Assets Name: Furniture, Fixture & Furnishing
Depreciation rate : 25 %
. . N Absorbed unabsorbed . e
S.N | Purchase date Specification Qty Amount Ratio addition Addition Period yesr Depreciation
1 01/04/2081|Opening Balance (A) 661218.75 -
2 30/04/208! | Steel Cupboard 1 12,995.00 1.00 12,995.00 - 0.92 2,999.53
3 02/08/2081 | Chiar 1 8,000.00 1.00 8,000.00 - 0.67 1,331.51
4 25/1072081  [Chair 3 38,399.99 0.67 25,599.99 12,800.00 0.44 4,181.92
5 10/05/208] | Office Interiors works 1 1,146,221.48 1.00 1,146,221.48 - 0.90 256,722.21
6 30/06/2081 | Office Interiors works 1 11,300.00 1.00 11,300.00 - 0.76 2,136.16
7 30/06/208]1 [Office Interiors works L 29,000.00 1.00 29,000.00 - 0.76 5,482.19
8 31/0172082 | Office Interiors works | 1,224,183.06 0.33 408,061.02 816,122.04 0.17 51,147.37
9 22/02/2082 _[Office Interiors works 1 213,502.52 0.33 71,167.51 142,335.01 0.11 5,703.15
10 | 03/02/2082 |Office Interiors works 1 26,800.00 0.33 8,933.33 17,866.67 0.16 1,064.66
11 19/03/2082  [Office Interiors works | 26,800.00 | 033 8,933.33 17,866.67 0.04 256.99
12 29/03/2082 |Office Interiors works 1 44,000.00 0.33 14,666.67 29,333.33 0.01 120.55
13 31/03/2082 _[OfTice Interiors works 1 345,033.77 0.33 115,011.26 230,022.51 0.01 472.65
Sub Total (B) 3,126,235.82 1,859,889.59 1,266,346.23 331,618.,88
Total (A+B) 3,787,454.57 1,859,889.59 1,266,346.23
Pool B Total :
|0pening Balance net 1,765,042.13 441,260.53
Opening Balance Gross 4,488,625.17
Period 3,272,023.22 2,005,676.99 1,266,346.23 361,222.04
Disposal
Total Gross Value 7,760,648.39
n ~
c
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\ Mathillo Mailun Khola

Jalvidhyut Limited

Pool C

Assets Name:Light Vehicle
Depreciation rate : 20 %

. . . Absorbed unabsorbed . .
S.N | Purchase date Specification Qty Amount Ratio addition Addition Period year Depreciation
01/04/2081| Opening Balance (A) 11,552,937.00 -
31/01/2082 |Vehicle - MG SS EV 4,319,000.00 0.33 1,439,666.67 2,879,333.33 0.17 144,361.10
Sub Total (B) 4,319,000.00 1,439,666.67 2,879,333.33 144,361.10
Total (A+B) 15,871,937.00
Assets Name:Motor Bike
Depreciation rate : 20 %
. . . Absorbed unabserbed . L.
S.N | Purchase date Specification Qty Amount Ratio addition Addition Period year Depreciation
01/04/2081| Opening Balance (A) 1,055,700.00 - -
Sub Total (B) - - -
Total (A+B) 1,055,700.00 -
Opening Bzlance net Remaining Pa1 5,389,821.23 1,077,964.25
Opening Balance Gross 12,608,637.00
Period 4,319,000.00 1,439,666.67 2,879,333.33 144,361.10
Total Gross Value 16,927,637.00 1,222,325.34
POOLD
Assets Name: Machine & Equipment
Depreciation rate : 15 %
Absorbed unabsorbed s
: ificati N . .
S.N | Purchase date Specification Qty Amount Ratio addition Addition Period ycar Depreciation
1 01/04/2081|Opening Balance (A) 2,216,851.00 - -
2| 17/032082 | Welding Machine -IN300 19,500.00 0.33 6,500.00 13,000.00 0.04 128.22
Sub Total (B) 19,500.00 6,500.00 13,000.00
Total (A+B) 2,236,351.00 6,500.00 13,000.00
Opening Balance net 1,056,466.03 158,469.91
Opening Balance Gross 2,216,851.00
Period 19,500.00 6,500.00 13,000.00 12822
Total Gross Yalue 2,236,351.00 158,598.12
Pool E
Assets Name:Computer Software
. . Absorbed unabsorbed
3 § fi . . -
S.N [ Purchase date Specification Qty Amount Ratio addition Addition Period year Depreciation
Total (A+B) - - .
Opening Balance net 8,211,329.40
Opening Balance Gross 19,314,113.17
Period 7,610,523.22 3,451,843.66 4,158,679.56 2,183,406.05

Disposal Gross

Grand Total

26,924,636.39
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Jalvidhyut Limited

Marilie Mo Khcle Jubvblieyt Lkl

MATHILLO MAILUN KHOLA JALVIDHYUT LIMITED
Kathmandu, Nepal

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 General

Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited is a Public Limited company registered with the company
Registrar’s Office (CRO) under the companies Act, 2053 on 30" Shrawan 2069 (14 Aug 2012) with
registration number 96042/069/70 of Public limited company. The company has its registered office at
Kathmandu Metropolitan City, Ward no: 4, Dhumabarahi, Kathmandu. Currently the Company has been
operation of the Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana (14.3 MW) since 28 Magh 2080 and
developing Madhya Mailung Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana (13 MW) Cascade Aayojana and Mathillo
Mailung B Jalvidhyut Aayojana (17 MW). The PAN no. of company is 600848709.

The shares of the company are listed and traded dated 2080.07.23 on Nepal Stock Exchange Limited (

NEPSE) as MMKIL .

In the financial statements, Mathillo Mailung Khola Jalvidhyut Limited has been referred as “MMKIJIL” or
company. '

1.2 Financial Statements

The Financial Statement of the MMKIJL for the period ended 32™ Ashadh 2082 comprises:
¢ Statement of Financial Position
¢ Statement of Profit or Loss
o Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
o Statement of Cash Flows
o Statement of Changes in Equity
* Notes to the Financial Statements and Significant Accounting Policies of the Company

1.3 Principal Activities and Operations

The principal activity of the company is to generate and sell hydroelectricity to Nepal Electricity
Authority.

1.4 Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the fair preparation and presentation of Financial Statements of
MMKIL as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2006, in accordance with Nepal Financial Reportmg
Standard (NFRS). f

1.5 Approval of Financial Statements

The accompanied Financial Statements have been authorized by the Board of Directors vide its resolution
dated 2082-05-23 and recommended for approval by the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for
certain items that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below. '

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

2.2 Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statement of MMKIJL which comprises the components mentioned above have been
prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards comprising of Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards and Nepal Accounting Standards (hereafter referred as NFRS), laid down by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Act ,2006.

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements of MMKJL are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the MMKIJL operates. Financial information are presented in
Nepalese Rupees, and round off to the lowest cardinal number of one digit. There was no change in
MMKIJL’s presentation and functional currency during the year under review.

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards requires
the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The most significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have most significant effect in the Financial Statements are as follows: -

3.1 Going Concern

The Directors have made an assessment of MMKIJL’s ability to continue as a going concern and satisfed

that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, Board is not aware

of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon MMKJL’s ability to continue as a going
concern and do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operatiofs of it. Therefore, the Fmancml
Statements are prepared on going concern. ; X
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3.2 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial
position can be derived from active markets i.e., Level 1, they are derived from observable market data.
However, if this is not available, Level 2 and Level 3 Fair value measurement techniques have been used
as per NFRS, If this cannot be estimated, judgment is required to establish fair values.

3.3 Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that have occurred since
the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

3.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets subject to impairment testing include intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment. The Company tests material intangible assets under construction at least annually far
impairment. Assets subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment test
is performed by comparing the carrying amount of the asset or cash generating unit (CGU) to its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the fair value less costs to sell
and Value in use which is the present value of the future cash flows from an asset or CGU.

3.5 Useful Life of the Property, Plant and Equipment

MMKIL reviews the residual values, useful life and method of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment at each reporting date, Such life is dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of
the assets and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors including
relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives, residual values and methods are
reviewed annually using the best information available to the Management.

3.6 Taxation

The MMKIL is subject to income tax and judgment is required to determine the total provision for current,
deferred and other taxes due to the uncertainties that exists with respect to the interpretation of the
applicability of tax laws, at the time of preparation of these financial statements.

Uncertainties also exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and
timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the long-term nature
and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the
assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax
income and expense amounts that were initially recorded, and deferred tax amounts in the period in which
the determination is made.

3.7 Provisions for Liabilities and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) because ofa.
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be requiréd;to :.
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. “\ TR

¢ When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under_.an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a geparate asset, but only whj:‘/g..‘,-'iﬂ'é'a; W
reimbursement is virtually certain. S '
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+ The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

o If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

» A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating
the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established,
the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

» A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. Contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognize contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements. '

* A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity.

¢ Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for the
completion of assets. '

» Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets, and commitments are reviewed at each reporting

period.
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MATHILLO MAILUN KHOLA JALVIDHYUT LIMITED
Kathmandu, Nepal

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
Financial Statements, and deviations if any have been disclosed accordingly.

5.1 Current versus Non-Current Classification
The company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-

current classification. The company classifies an asset as current when it is:
- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

The company classifies a liability as current when:
- It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period
The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

5.2 Property, plant and equipment
Property, Plant & equipment (PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes inward freight, duties and taxes and incidental expenses related to acquisition. Expenses
capitalized also include applicable borrowing costs for qualifying assets, if any. All up gradation /
enhancements are charged off as revenue expenditure unless they bring similar significant additional
benefits. Subsequently, PPE can be measured on Cost model or Revaluation model.

5.2.1 Cost model
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation less accumulated impairment losses.

5.2.2 Revaluation model
The Hydropower Company has not applied the revaluation model to any class of freehold land and buildings

or other assets.

On revaluation of an asset, any increase in the carrying amount is recognized in ‘Other comprehensive
income” and accumulated in equity, under capital reserve or used to reverse a previous revaluation decrease
relating to the same asset, which was charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss. In this circumstance, the
increase is recognized as income to the extent of previous write down. Any decrease in the carrying amoq”rit s
is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss or debited to the Other Comprehensive i mcmne :
to the extent of any credit balance existing in the capital reserve in respect of that asset. \*

The decrease recognized in other comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under _
ST,

capital reserves. Any balance remaining in the revaluation reserve in respect of an asset is transferred d,tﬁ:\gtl?

to retained earnings on retirement or dlsposal of the asset

@“;W%ﬁ(% ‘

(2

1\\

www.sanimamailung.com 18 affes JAEIROT Ja (3.3, 20C9/0CR) ¥q




/ Mathillo Mailun Khola

Jalvidhyut Limited

Nl Mo Khckn Jubviiyet Linitd

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income.

The Company has adopted Cost mode! for property, plant & equipment. Carrying amount of assets has been
assumed as fair value.

5.3 Right of Use Assets
A lease is a contract in which the right to use an asset (the leased asset) is granted for an agreed-upon period

in return for compensation. The company has recognized at present value assets for the right of use received
and liabilities for the payment obligation entered into for all leases. Lease liabilities include the following
lease payments:

. Fixed payments, less lease incentives offered by the lessor

. Variable payment linked to an index or interest rate

. Expected residual payment from residual value guarantees

. The exercise price of call options when exercise is estimated to be sufficiently likely and

. Contractual penalties for the termination of lease if the lease term reflects the exercise of terminable
option

Lease payments are discounted at the implicit interest rate underlying the lease to the extent that this can be
determined. Otherwise, discounting is at the incremental borrowing rate. The incremental borrowing rate has
been used as discount rate for the reporting period.

Right of Use assets are measured at cost, which comprises the following:

. Lease liabilities,

. Lease payments made at or prior to delivery, less lease incentives received,
. Initial Direct Costs, and

. Restoration Obligations

Right of Use assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost. They are depreciated over the term of the

lease using the straight-line method.
During the year, the company has entered into a 10-year lease contract for office space i.e,10 Bhadra 2081

to 9 Bhadra 2091. This has been recognized as Right of use assets and accounted for using NFRS 16 Leases
as mentioned above.

Further, the company has entered in to a 2 years’ rent agreement for the store space on 16 Jestha 2082 with
rental amount of NPR 5,000 cost per month. The amount being of nominal value, the company has used
recognition exemption allowed by NFRS 16.

5.4 Capital Work in Progress
These are no any capital expenses in this year.

5.5 Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets that the Company controls and from which it expects future economic benefits are
capitalized upon acquisition and initially measured at cost comprising the purchase price (including ifapo
duties and non-refundable taxes) and directly attributable costs to prepare the asset for its intended use\.z:/,,

The useful life of an intangible asset is considered finite where the rights to such assets are limited to a \
specified period of time by contract or law (e.g., licenses) or the likelihood of technical, technolggwgi'?~ G
obsolescence (e.g., computer software). If, there are no such limitations, the useful life is taksn\\’eﬁ‘"be
indefinite. N f/e
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Intangible assets that have finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives by the straight-line
method unless it is practical to reliably determine the pattern of benefits arising from the asset. An intangible
asset with an indefinite useful life is not amortized.

Software is amortized over a period of five years.

All intangible assets are tested for impairment. Amortization expenses and impairment losses and reversal
of impairment losses are taken to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. Thus,
after initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortization and / or
impairment losses.

Intangible assets include Computer application and Service concession arrangements (in accordance with
IFRIC 12).

Intangible asset (Computer application) includes the cost of computer application development including
software, direct charges for labor, materials, contracted services and borrowing costs as per NAS 23.

Service concession arrangements of MMKIJL includes Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana (14.3
MW), Work in Progress of Mathillo Mailun — B Jalvndhyut Aayojana (17 MW) and Madhya Mailun Khola
Jalvidhyut Aayojana (13 MW), .

Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana (14.3 MW)

Intangible Assets include Service concession arrangements of Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana.
This service concession arrangement is amortized over the remaining contractual period of 26.62 years as
per the Generation License of MMKIL. As per Generation License, life of Mathillo Mailung Khola
Jalvidhyut Aayojana (14.3 MW) is up to 2107/11/26.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss when the asset is derecognized.

5.6 Intangible Assets Under Development

The Intangible Assets under Development includes service concession arrangement still in the development
phase and Power Purchase agreements for these projects is yet to be concluded. The following are the details:

Mathillo Mailun — B Jalvidhyut Aayojana (17 MW)

Mathillo Mailun — B Jalvidhyut Aayojana (17 MW) is the upstreem project of Mathillo Mailung Khola
Jalvidhyut Aayojana (14.3MW). The survey study work of the project has been completed and the generation
license received from Department of Electricity Development. The details of expenditure incurred till date
are as follows:

g e HEE thaiy | L]

Consu[tancy Fees- Mallung B 12,061,337.50 - 12,061,337:50-1=2C
Contract / Temporary / Daily Wages 84,857.00 - 84,857.007
Field Consumable Goods 84,366.00 - 84,366.00 | e
Fuel & Lubricants 16,598.00 ; 16,598 b
Geophysical Investigation - Mailung B 1,326,761.25 - 1,326,7

Grid Connection Fee- Mailung B N 152,000.00 - 152 0%»90
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Hydrological Station- 15,212.00 - 15,212.00
License Fee 26,500,000.00 - 26,500,000.00
Meeting Allowance - Mailung B 56,031.00 6,000.00 62,031.00
Meeting Expenses- Mailung B 93,245.00 - 93,245.00
Porter & Helper 583,043.00 - 583,043.00
Power Purchase Agreement Fee- Mailung B 270,000.00 - 270,000.00
Printing & Stationery - Mailung B 6,764.00 - 6,764.00
Public Hearing Program Expenses 762,085.21 - 762,085.21
Travelling Expenses 159,880.00 - 159,880.00
Total 42,172,179.96 6,000.00 42,178,179.96

Madhya Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana (13 MW)

Madhya Mailung Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana (13 MW) is the cascade project of Mathillo Mailung Khol_a
Jalvidhyut Aayojana (14.3MW). The survey study work of the project has been completed generation license
received from Department of Electricity Development. The details of expenditure incurred till date are as

follows:

ity "_L‘:’ﬁ g |

Consultancy Fee - Cascade 12,456,894.00 1,131,130.00 13,588,024.00
Core Drilling Expenses - Cascade 388,407.00 - 388,407.00
Geophysical Investigation - Cascade 1,132,712.00 - 1,132,712.00
Grid Connection Fee - Cascade ©102,000.00 - 102,000.00
Guest Refreshment - Cascade - 15,210.00 15,210.00
Land- Madhya Mailung 14,729,500.00 - 14,729,500.00
License Fees - Cascade 29,500,000.00 - 29,500,000.00
Meeting Allowances - Cascade 70,155.00 6,000.00 76,155.00
Meeting Expenses - Cascade 81,062.00 - 81,062.00
Porter and Helper - Cascade 5,455.00 - 5,455.00
Power Purchases Agreement Fee - Cascade 270,000.00 - 270,000.00 J
Public Hearing Program Expenses - Cascade 1,042,993.40 - 1,042,993.40
Travelling Expenses - Cascade ' - 9,500.00 9,500.00
Total 59,779,178.40 1,161,840.00 60,941,018.40

5.7 Service Concession arrangements
IFRIC 12 on Service Concession arrangements provides that the Operator’s right over the infrastructure

assets cannot be recognized as property, plant and equipment (PPE) of the operator.

This Interpretation applies to public-to-private service concession arrangements if:

(a) The grantor controls or regulates what services the operator must provide with the infrastructure, to whom
it must provide them, and at what price; and

(b) The grantor controls—through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise-any significant re51dual
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.

Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful life (wholeﬂ ]
life assets) is within the scope of this Interpretation, if the following conditions satisfies. This Interpretatioi &\

applies to both:
LG

a) Infrastructure that the operator constructs or acquires from a third party for the purpose of thecselece
/

v

arrangement and i =
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(a) The grantor controls-through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise-any significant residual
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.

The consideration received by the operator is recognized at fair value. Consideration may result in the
recognition of a financial asset or an intangible asset.

5.7.1 Recognition as a financial asset

The Financial asset model is used when the Company, being an operator, has an unconditional contractual
right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction
services. Unconditional contractual right is established when the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the
operator (a) specific or determinable amount; (b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from the
users of the public services and specified or determinable amounts.

5.7.2 Recognition as an intangible asset

The intangible asset model is used to the extent that the MMKIJL, being an operator, receives a right (a
license) to charge users of the public service. A right to charge users of a public services is not an
unconditional right to receive cash because the amounts are contingent on to the extent that public uses the
services. Both type of arrangements may exist within a single contract to the extent that the grantor has given
an unconditional guarantee of payment for the construction and the operation i.e. considered as a Financial
asset and to the extent that the operator has to rely on the public using the service in order to obtain payment,
the operation has an intangible asset. ,

The Company manages concession arrangements which will include power supply from its hydro power
plant namely Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana (14.3 MW). The Company maintains and services
the infrastructure during the concession period. The concession period for Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyuit
Aayojana is up to B.S 2107/11/26. These concession arrangements set out rights and obligations related to
the infrastructure and the services to be provided to the public user through Nepal Electricity Authority. The
right to consideration gives rise to an intangible asset and accordingly, the intangible asset models is applied.

5.8 Construction Agreements:

5.8.1 Main Civil Contract:

Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalabihyut Limited.has entered the contract of Main Civil Works of Mathillo Mailun
Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana (14.3MW) with Bavari Construction Pvt. Ltd on 20 Feb, 2019 and revised on
8" Jan 2024 amounting NPR 1,086,498,984.35 Including VAT with provisional sum. The Contractor has
issued bills up to IPC-24 as Final IPC at 31 Chaitra, 2081. The retention payable is NPR 3,554,328.61.

5.8.2 Hydro Mechanical Contract:

Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalabihyut Limited. has entered the contract of Hydro Mechanical Works (excluding
cost of steel plate) of Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana (14.3MW) with Structo Nepal Pvt. Ltd
on 26 July 2020, having contract amount of NPR 107,866,426.61 including VAT. Advance to the Contractor
as on 32™ Ashadh 2082 is NPR 1,969,957.48 and retention payable is NPR 4,583,988.61.

5.8.3 Electro Mechanical Contract:
Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalabihyut Limited. has entered the contract of Electro Mechanical Works of Mathillo
Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana (14.3MW) with Asia Pacific Power-Tech Co. Ltd., China on 15 July.
2020 and revised on 15" Dec 2023 amounting USD 2,718,500. The Contractor has 1ssued invoice with tgtal
Amount USD 2,608,200 till 32" Ashadh 2082. The retention payable amount is USD 438,393.60.

5.8.4 Transmission Line Contract:
Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalabihyut Limited. has entered the contract of Transmission Line Works of Mathillo
Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Aayojana (14.3MW) with Cosmic Electrical Engineering Associates Pvt. Ltd. on
13 Jan 2021 having contract amount of INR 26,833,654.00 for supply of machinery and NPR 63, 309,25 .3:}“' -

for service portion. The Contractor has completed supply of Tower parts, construction of transmlsg@};‘ Ine 45}
and issued final IPC for construction servnce till 32" Asahdh 2082.
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5.9 Financial Instruments

5.9.1 Date of Recognition _
All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that MMKJL
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes ‘regular way trades’. Regular
way trade means purchases or sales of financial assets that required delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

5.9.2 Recognition and Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments

The classification of financial instruments at the initial recognition depends on their purpose and
characteristics and the management’s intention in acquiring them. All financial instruments are measured
initially at their fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to acquisition or issue of such
financial instruments except in the case of such financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, as per the Nepal Accounting Standard — NFRS 9 (Financial Instruments). Transaction cost in relation
to financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are dealt with the Statement of

Profit or Loss.

5.9.3 Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets
At the inception, a financial asset is classified into one of the following:
a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
i. Financial assets held for trading
ii. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
b. Held to Maturity Financial Assets
c. Loans and Receivables
d. Financial assets available for sale
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification.

5.9.3.a Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is designated upon
initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

5.9.3. a (i) Financial Assets Held for Trading
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit
or position taking. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by MMKIJL that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Nepal Accounting Standards
NFRS 9 (Financial Instruments). '

Financial assets held for trading are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognized in ‘Fair value gains and losses. Dividend income is recorded in ‘Other Income’
when the right to receive the payment has been established. Interest income earned from financial assets held
for trading is recorded under ‘Other Income’ using the effective interest rate.

MMKIJL evaluates it’s held for trading asset portfolio, other than derivatives, to determine whether the
intention to sell them in the near future is still appropriate. When MMKJL is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets and management’s intention to sell them in the foreseeable future 51gn1ﬁcant1y
changes, MMKIJL may elect to reclassify these financial assets.

Financial assets held for trading include instruments such as government securities and equity instru'tﬁ}s',,) :
that have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

5.9.3. a (ii)Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
MMKIL designates financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the following circumstan;
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e Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets.

e The assets are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are managed and
their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy. '

e The asset contains one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash flows that
would otherwise have been required under the contract.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss is recorded in the Statement of Financial
Position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Other Income’ in the Statement of Profit or
Loss. Interest earned is accrued under ‘Other Income’, using the effective interest rate method, and dividend
income is also recorded under ‘Other Income’ when the right to receive the payment has been established.

The MMKIL has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition as designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

5.9.3. b Held to Maturity Financial Assets

Held to Maturity Financial Assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable Payments
and fixed maturities which the MMKJL has the intention and ability to hold to maturity. After the initial
measurement, held to maturity financial investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate, less impairment. The amortization is included in ‘Other Income’ in the Statement of
Profit or Loss. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in the Statement of

Profit or Loss.

The term deposits of 12 months maturity have been shown under this heading in the financial statements.

5.9.3. ¢ Financial Assets Available for Sale

Available for sale financial assets include equity and debt securities. Equity Investments classified as
‘Available for Sale’ are those which are neither classified as ‘Held for Trading’ nor ‘Designated at fair value
through profit or losses. Debt securities in this category are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, available for sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses are recognized directly in equity through ‘Other comprehensive income /
expense’ in the ‘Available for sale reserve’. When the investment is disposed of the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in equity is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Other operating
income’. Where MMKIL holds more than one investment in the same security, they are deemed to be
disposed off on a first-in-first-out basis. Interest earned whilst holding ‘Available for sale financial
investments’ is reported as ‘Other income’ using the effective interest rate. Dividend earned whilst holding
‘Available for sale financial investments’ are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss as ‘Other Income’
when the right to receive the payment has been established. The losses arising from impairment of such
investments are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Other operating and administrative
expenses’ and removed from the ‘Available for sale reserve’.

The company does not have any Available for sale investments.

5.9.4 Financial Instruments — Credit Risk and Impairment

a) Trade Receivables (Sundry Debtors)

The Company's trade receivables are primarily comprised of amounts due from Nepal Electricity A
for the sale of electricity generated. These receivables are initially recognized at their transacti
'
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which is assumed to be their fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less any loss allowance for expected credit losses.

The Company applies the simplified approach for recognizing expected credit losses (ECL) for trade
receivables, as permitted by NFRS 9. This approach requires the loss allowance to be measured at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses from initial recognition.

Impairment Assessment and Loss Allowance:

The Company has established a provision matrix to calculate lifetime ECLs for its trade receivables based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking information specific to the debtors and
economic conditions.

The historical loss rates are adjusted for current and forecast economic conditions. As of the reporting date,
the economic environment for the power sector has remained stable, and there has been no significant change
in the credit quality of the Company's major debtors, who are primarily government-owned entities.

Based on this assessment, the Company's provision matrix applies the following impairment rates to the
aging of its trade receivables:

e Not past due: 0%

¢ 0-90 days past due: 0%

o 91 -360 days past due: 0.5%

e 360 - 720 days past due: 1%

e > 720 days past due: 2%
As of end Asadh ,2082 the outstanding balance of trade receivables is NPR 4,69,80,121.30 The entire balance
of trade receivables is aged within 45 days of the due date. Consequently, based on the Company's historical
credit loss experience and current economic forecasts, no impairment loss has been recognized during the
period. The loss allowance held against trade receivables as of the balance sheet date is nil.

The Company does not hold any collateral against these trade receivables.

5.10  Financial Liabilities

The Company initially recognizes loans and receivables and debt securities issued on the date when they are
originated. All other financial liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial liability is classified as at fair value through
profit or loss if it is classified as held-for-trading or is designated as such on initial recognition. Directly
attributable transaction costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as incurred. Financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest
expense, are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Other non-derivative financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities consist of amount due to creditors, staff and contractors.

De-recognition of other financial liabilities
A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially - 73
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchangé: Br
modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, an§.
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. ol

Long Term Loan (Bank Loan) 2
The company has recognized long term liability (Bank Loan) as financial liability and has been clas ﬁd as N <
financial Ilablllty peasured at amortized cost. [*
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5.11 Financial Risk Management Objectives
The operations expose the Company to various risks. These risks include market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risks), credit and liquidity risk.

a) Risk management framework
The board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework. The risk management framework is intended to ensure that risks are taken care of

with due diligence and care.

The risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the company’s activities. The
Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices that will affect the company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters while optimizing the return. The Company currently has no transactions which expose it
primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates, equity prices, etc.

c) Foreign currency risk

The Company’s functional currency is NPR and has certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies.
As of the reporting date, management has analyzed. the impact of the exposure to foreign currency balances
and the impact is not expected to be material.

d) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligation resulting in
financial loss to the company. The carrying amounts of financial assets and contract assets represent the
maximum credit exposure. The Company is not exposed to significant credit risk as the counterparty
involved is Nepal Electricity Authority.

e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations assoclated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the Board of Directors, who have provided to the management, credit limit for approved financial
institutions to minimize the liquidity risk exposure.

5.12  Depreciation and Amortization
1. Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and:
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the wr{&en
down method. {
2. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estlmate__ v
useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estlmate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

assets determined by the management. Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is charg
rata basis in the year of purchase. The useful life of the assets and the corresponding rat
the assets are depreciated are as follows:

o a g %
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Category of assets Estimated useful life Depreciation Rate
Building 58-59 years 5%
Plant and Equipment 18-19 years 15%
Office Equipment 10-11 years 25%
Furniture and fixtures 10-11 years 25%
Computers and accessories 10-11 years 25%
Vehicles 13-14years 20%

Computer software is amortized over an estimated useful life of 5 years on straight line basis.

4. Useful life is either the period of time which the assets is expected to be used or the number of
production or similar units expected to be obtained from the use of asset.
The estimated useful life, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each

reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
5. Office furniture, equipment, vehicles & plant equipment costing less than NPR 5,000 per unit is
charged to the profit and loss account in the year of purchase.

6. Depreciation of Project land and Access Road is recognized using 3.70% fixed rate method on
income tax depreciation calculation sheet considering the 27 years project life from the commercial
operation date 28 Magh 2080.

5.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets subject to impairment testing include intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment. Impairment of material intangible assets under construction are tested at least once a year. Assets
subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment test is performed
by comparing the carrying amount of the asset or cash generating unit (CGU) to its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use which is
the present value of the future cash flows from an asset or CGU.

5.14 Retirement Benefits Obligations

5.14.1 Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which MMKIJL pays fixed contribution
into a separate Institution (or own fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee
services in the current and prior periods, as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee
Benefits).

The contribution payable by the employer to a defined contribution plan in proportion to the services
rendered to MMKIJL by the employees and is recorded as an expense under ‘Personnel expenses’ as and
when they become due. Unpaid contributions, if any, are recorded as a liability under ‘Other liabilities.

The company has been registered with Social Security Fund as required by Social Security Act, 2074 and=_;;\ 1
has been depositing 31% of basic salary of its employees into the Social Security Fund established as pe e "
Act. N R

5.14.2 Defined Benefit Plans

19 (Employee Ben,g:ﬁts)
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5.14.3 Unutilized Accumulated Leave

The company's liability towards the accumulated leave which is expected to be utilized beyond one year
from the end of the reporting period is treated as other long term employee benefits. The company's net
obligation towards unutilized accumulated leave is calculated by discounting the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods to determine the present
value of such benefits. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds that have
maturity dates approximating the terms of company’s obligation. The calculation is performed using the
Projected Unit Credit method. Net change in liability for unutilized accumulated leave including any
actuarial gain and loss are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’ and the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income in the perlod in which they arise.

NAS 19 requires actuarial valuations for Leave encashment in order to determine the liability or asset that
the company has at the year end. Actuarial valuations have been carried out to determine the same.

5.15  Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the

related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term
cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

5.16 Provisions and Contingencies

In accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards (NAS) 37- Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, a provision is required to be recognized where there is a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the timing or amount of which are uncertain.

The company has made provisions for all those obligations meeting the definition of NAS 37.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there
is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the entity.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

5.17 Government grants
Government grants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to an entity in return

for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating activities of the entity.

Government grants can be Grants related to assets or Grants related to income. Under Grants related to assets

there is a condition that the entity shall purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets. G;rants & ,\'
related to income are grants other than grants related to assets. 2 7/
Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance they will be received and the compahy il
will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. Government grants that compensate the company
for expenses incurred are recognized in profit or loss in the same period in which the expenses arg .
recognized. Grants that compensate the company for the cost of an asset are recorded as deferred revbnue

AY)

and recogmzed in other revenue over the serv1ce life of the related asset. * S
~a
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Government grants shall be recognized as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related
costs which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis.

Once a government grant is recognized, any related contingent liability or contingent asset is treated in
accordance with NAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

5.18 Borrowing cost

As per NAS 23, Borrowing costs are the costs incurred by the company in borrowing loans for construction
of assets or any capital goods. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as
an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Borrowings can be general or specific. Borrowing costs are charged
at profit and loss account for the year 2081-082.

5.19 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

MMKIJL as a Lessee

At the commencement date, the Company shall recognize a right of use asset at cost and a lease liability at
the present values of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payment shall be discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the company shall use its incremental borrowing rate.

The company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The company
also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

After the commencement date, the company shall measure the lease liability by

a. Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;

b. Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

¢. Re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications to reflect revised
in substance fixed lease payments

MMKJL as a Lessor

For operating lease, MMKIL reports the leased assets at amortized cost as an asset under the property, plant
& Equipment where it is the lessor. The lease payment received in the period are shown under other operating
income on straight line basis. Where MMKIJL is the lessor in finance lease, the assets are recognized as lease
receivables in the amount of the net investment in the statement of financial position. During the reporting
period, the company has not leased out any of its asset.

5.20 Receivables and Payables

Receivables and payables are accounted on accrual basis. Balance amounts on year end are shown in
Statement of Financial Position under ‘Current Other Financial Assets’ and ‘Current Other Financial
Liabilities’ heading.

5.21  Retention Amount Payable
Retention Amount Payable to the Main Contractors of MMKJL as at end Ashadh 2082 are as follows:-

Particulars Amount in NPR Al J

Asia Pacific Power Tech Co. Ltd. 60,322,959.36 1

Bavari Construction Pvt. Ltd. 3,554,328.61 ”

Cosmic Electrical Engineering Associates Pvt, Ltd. 3,236,616.20

Structo Nepal Pvt. Ltd 4,583,988.61 | . ¢
Total 71,697,892.78 ¢

[
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5.22 Financial Income
Financial Income includes Interest Income.

5.23  Financial Costs
Financial costs include the finance costs under term loan, bridge gap loan and interest on lease availed by

the company.

524 Income Tax
As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 (Income Taxes) tax expense is the aggregate amount included

in determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxation. Income Tax
expense is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized
directly in equity or other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Income Tax Act 2058 has specified a tax rate of 25% flat for Hydropower Companies. As per Section 11 (3
Gha) of Income Tax Act 2058, Hydropower companies are exempted from tax for the first 10 years of its
operation and 50% concession on tax is provided for the next 5 years thereon. MMKIJA (14.3MW) started
commercial operation since 28 Magh 2080 so, the company using tax holiday period,

5.24.1 Current Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue

Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

Current Tax includes advance tax amounting to NPR 29,14,748.91 paid up to the period.

5.24.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
and the amounts used for taxation purposes (tax base), at the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax has been computed at the tax rate of 25% flat.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the future tax consequences to the extent it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Income tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or equity, are
disclosed separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

As per Income Tax Act, 2058 Section 11 (3Gha) (Ka), The licensed person or entity commen'(":i.pg'j‘y
commercial production, transmission or distribution of hydropower till Chaitra 2083 shall be providéd fx
income tax exemption for the first ten years after starting commercial production, and fifty percent exemption
for another five years afterwards. The company is in tax holiday period from this FY to upcoming 10 years
due to which no temporary differences arise on carrying amount and tax base and hence no deferred
assets/liabilities have been recognized in profit and loss statement
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525 Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash in hand, cash at bank and

short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

5.26 Inventory
Inventory includes Diesel, Spare parts for Electro-mechanical and Hydro-Mechanical equipment for

production purpose expected to be used in the normal course. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs in bringing the asset to the location and condition intended to
be used by management. Inventories are stated at lower of cost or Net realizable value. Net Realizable value
represents the estimated selling price of the inventory less any estimated costs to sell. Inventory is maintained
in First in First out (FIFO) Basis. :

527 Revenue Recognition

5.26.1 Sales of Electricity
Revenue is recognized to the extent that the economic benefits associated with a transaction will flow to the

company and the revenue can be reliably measured in line with NFRS -15 Revenue.

The sale of electricity is the regular course of business of MMKIJL; therefore, revenue is recognized at the
rate/s given in the Power Purchase Agreement based on the approved meter reading from Trishuli 3B Hub
Substation, Nuwakot of Nepal Electricity Authority. Revenue recognized from sales of electricity for the
year 2081-082 amounting NPR 34,95,60,886.18

5.26.2 Construction Revenue (Service Concession Arrangement)

The Company has recorded the revenue of NPR 26,598,153.76 representing revenue from construction
activities carried out with respect to creation of Project Assets during the year, which is based on forecasted
cost as per IFRIC 12. While calculating the construction revenue, it has been assumed that the project is
constructed on cost to cost basis and no profit margin has thus been included. The assumption has been based
on the fact that this contract is a deemed contract only and also in current scenario, the COVID has highly
impacted the construction business impacting their profit scenario. So, the profit margin has been assumed
to be zero.

5.26.3 Construction Cost (Service Concession Arrangement)

The Construction Cost represents aggregate of cost incurred for creation of Project Assets during the
reporting period. The details of the Construction Revenue and Construction Cost recorded with respect to
the creation of Project Assets is as follows:

Construction Revenue 26,598,153.76 427,728,799.95

Construction Cost (Refer Note 4.2) (26,598,153.76) (427,728,799.95)-1"

Construction Service Mark Up (5 N\

5.28  Foreign currency translation
The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is determined on the basis of the primary

Revenues and expenses resulting from transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Nepalese
——

equivalents at excha{pge rates approximating those in effect agthe transaction date. //\
- ,
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Nepalese rupee at the
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Translation gains and losses are credited or charged to Profit
or loss in the current period.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates
different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous

financial statements has been recognized (using the closing rate of reporting date) as foreign exchange gain
or loss and adjusted with statement of Profit and Loss as per NAS 21].

5.29 Advance to Contractors

Following advances to the main contractors have been lying outstanding are as at 32" Ashadh 2082:

Particulars Amount

Structo Nepal Pvt. Ltd. 1,969,957.48

Ekikrit Byapar Company Pvt. Ltd. 1,168,451.50
Total 3,138,408.98

5.30 Cash/ Letter of Credit Margin
The details of Cash/Letter of Credit Margin as on 32™ Ashadh 2082 is as follows:

Fank’s Name Amount
Siddhartha Bank Ltd 3,177,000.00
Total 3,177,000.00

5.31 Bank Guarantee
Mathillo Mailun Khola Jalvidhyut Limited. has provided bank guarantee of NPR 300,000.00 having validity
till 15 July, 2029 from Siddhartha Bank Ltd. to Department of Customs for EXIM code.

5.32 Prior Period Adjustment
There are no any prior period adjustment.

5.33  Earnings per share
Earnings per share is the portion of company’s profit allocated to each outstanding share of common stock.

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) for the year by the weighted average
number of equities shares outstanding during the year.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders
of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, as per NAS.
33- Earning Per Share.

FY 2081/82 FY 2080581
Amount used as a Numerator
Profit Attributable to ordinary Shareholders (68,37,107.90) (52,015,969)
Amount used as the Denominator gty
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares 10,000,000
Basic Earnings per Ordinary Share (NPR) - (0.68)
Diluted Earnings per Ordinary Share (NPR) (0.68)

5.34  Events after the Reporting Period
No circumstances have arisen since the reporting date which would requlre adjustments to, or disclos

™3
the financial stafements. ? [ e
W / / ' N,

www.sanimamailung.com / SIAT IS AT Jaw (3M.d. 0TI/ 0CR) %L




/ Mathillo Mailun Khola

Jalvidhyut Limited

5.35 Related Party Transactions

Related parties of an entity represent parent company, major shareholders, associated companies, directors
and key management personnel of the Group, and companies of which they are principal owners.

The names of these related parties, nature of these transactions and their total value have been set out in
accordance with the provisions of NAS 24- ‘Related Party Disclosures”.

According to Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS) — NAS 24 Key management personnel refers to
the person who have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
entity. Such Key management personnel include the board of Director of the company and key employee
of the company either directly or indirectly.

Related party transactions also include transaction with entities that are controlled, joint ventures or
significantly influenced directly by any key management personnel or their close family members.

Key management personnel of the company includes member of Board of Directors and General Manager
namely:

Mr. Rameshwar Rijal Chairman

Mr. Ghanashyam Thapa Director

Mr. Ajoy Karki Director

(Resign from 2082.05.23)

Mrs. Saroja Poudyal Regmi ~ Director

Mr. Rameshwar Lamichhane Director

Mr. Bishal Bhattarai Director

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maskey Director

Mr. Sudhir Giri General Manager

Compensation of key management personnel

Particulars F/Y 2081-082 F/Y 2080-081
Board Meeting Allowance 666,000.00 8,11,000.00
Communication Allowance to board member 126,000.00 99,000.00
Total 792,000.00 9,10,000.00
For the period ended (of GM) F/Y 2081-082 F/Y 2080-081
Short term employee benefits 2,519,351.11 2,851,721.56
Post-employment benefits 188,400.00 202,634.67
Total 2,707,751.11 3,054,356.23
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Financial Highlights 2081-082

Share Capital
Amount in NPR (Million)
1000_ 1000
- 750
1,000 766
- 600
600
v, 7078 Tl o F 79-C [ o081 FY: -
Project Intangible Assets
Amount in NPR ( Million)
2853
3,000 2771
2471
2,500
2,000 1657
1,500
1075
1,000
500
FY 2077-078 FY 2078-079 FY 2079-080 FY 2080-081 FY 2081-082
2,050
2,155
1,500 1,259 1,730
1,000
597
2 Ay
FY 2077-078 FY 2078-079 FY 207_  _ FY - FY . _ 082
MONTHLY REVENUE
AMOUNT IN NPR ( MILLIDN)
el 50.10
50.00 . 45.97
40.00 8527
30.00 21.28 23.20
20.00
10.00 22.80
- 13.14
el ~ o > o ~ a> e @ 2 v v
v:t‘v' ~S° A *_'19 %-19 S S "> A :;a-""- A2 o)
o Aa N R o Q‘-;b &t ¥ 433“ = _ﬂ.'bv =
& 2 &= = RS o i\ o -~ ® & &
q;b v_""’ 4= ‘bv- < ‘(W" (_:b N -
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